

### BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY BIG BEAR LAKE, CALIFORIA

JUNE 30, 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS





WWW.LSLCPAS.COM

BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY BIG BEAR LAKE, CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

PREPARED BY:

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

### BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY BIG BEAR LAKE, CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### JUNE 30, 2022

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position11
Statement of Activities13
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds14
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Net Position15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund16
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities17
Notes to Financial Statements19
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund46
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Grants Fund47
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability48
Schedule of Plan Contributions
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability50
Notes to Required Supplementary Information51
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Capital Projects Fund54

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

# LSL

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors Big Bear Fire Authority Big Bear Lake, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

#### Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Big Bear Fire Authority, (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Authority as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### Emphasis of Matter

#### Change in Accounting Principle

As described in the notes to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Authority adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, *Leases*. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### **Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements**

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.





Big Bear Fire Authority Big Bear Lake, California

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if, there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
  fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
  include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
  statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### Other Reporting Responsibilities

#### Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund and grants fund, and required pension and other post-employment benefits schedules, as listed on the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the



Big Bear Fire Authority Big Bear Lake, California

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison schedule for the capital projects fund (supplementary information) is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2022 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP

Brea, California December 22, 2022

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

#### **BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY**

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2022

As management of the Big Bear Fire Authority (the Authority), we offer readers of the Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our notes to the financial statements.

#### **Financial Highlights**

The Authority was formed in July 2012 and operates pursuant to the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act and the Fire Protection District Law of 1987. The Authority is a separate and legal entity which exercised joint authority over the participating fire agencies. The participating agencies are the Big Bear Lake Fire Protection District and the Big Bear Community Services District. The governing board is a ten-member board comprised of equal members from each of the partner agencies.

The Authority's financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows:

- The Authority's primary source of revenue is from property taxes passed through from the Big Bear Lake Fire Protection District and the Big Bear City Community Services District, as well as from air operations, ambulance services, and mutual aid reimbursements. All revenues are generated from governmental activities. Total revenue was \$17,352,545, an increase of \$1,195,022 over the prior year.
- The Authority's change in net position was an increase of \$299,860.
- The Authority's net cost of governmental activities was \$11,174,888, a decrease of \$4,386,006 over the prior year.

#### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

The annual financial report consists of three primary parts:

- Government-wide Financial Statements
- Fund Financial Statement
- Notes to the Financial Statements

#### **Government-wide Financial Statements**

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on the Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference among them reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as an indicator of the financial health of the Authority.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the fiscal year. It also separates revenue by governmental program.

#### **Fund Financial Statements**

Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the funds of the Authority. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other local government, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

#### **Notes to the Financial Statements**

Notes to Financial Statements are presented following the Fund Financial Statements to provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements including significant accounting policies, cash and investments, inter-fund transactions, liabilities, and other disclosures.

#### Financial Analysis of the Authority's General Fund Financial Statements

Our analysis focuses on the Balance sheet and changes in Fund balance of the Authority's governmental activities within the General Fund. The difference between the Authority's assets and liabilities represents the Authority's General Fund net position. Table 1 shows the assets and liabilities resulting in the Authority's net position. Table 2 shows the revenues and expenses resulting in the change in net position.

# Table 1Statement of Net Position

ASSETS:         Signal		2022	2021
Accounts Receivable         2,687,784         2,737,023           Accrued Interest Receivable         49         2,608           Due from other governments         137,092         189,458           Prepaid costs         21,415         23,532           Capital assets not being depreciated         2,606,839         406,376           Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783         1,618,756           OEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         9,951,474         8,219,900           DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         116,883         0           Deferred outflows related to pensions         15,754,400         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0           Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         22,716,233         3,219,758           Loans payable, due in more than one         99,721,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         3,271,833         3,219,758<	ASSETS:		
Accrued Interest Receivable         49         2,608           Due from other governments         137,092         189,458           Prepaid costs         21,415         23,532           Capital assets not being depreciated         2,606,839         406,376           Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783         1,618,756           Operation         9,951,474         8,219,900           DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         0         15,871,283         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to pensions         15,754,400         21,197,119         0           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0         0         15,871,283         21,197,119           LIABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190         0           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134         Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212         Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in more than one year         526,186         130,592         Noncurrent liabilities         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225	Cash and Investments	\$1,694,512	\$3,242,147
Due from other governments         137,092         189,458           Prepaid costs         21,415         23,532           Capital assets not being depreciated         2,606,839         406,376           Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783         1,618,756           OEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         9,951,474         8,219,900           DEFERRED outflows related to pensions         15,754,400         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0           116,883         0         15,871,283         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,875         362,190           Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in more than one         287,132         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,221,783         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,68	Accounts Receivable	2,687,784	
Prepaid costs         21,415         23,532           Capital assets not being depreciated         2,606,839         406,376           Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783         1,618,756           Question         9,951,474         8,219,900           DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         0         116,883         0           Deferred outflows related to PEB         116,883         0         0           15,871,283         21,197,119         116,883         0           LIABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in more than one         year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758         12,684,046         29,770,712           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310         255,338         942,574           Deferred inflows		-	
Capital assets not being depreciated         2,606,839         406,376           Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783         1,618,756 <b>9,951,474 8,219,900 DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:</b> 15,754,400         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to pensions         15,754,400         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0 <b>15,871,283 21,197,119 LIABILITIES:</b> Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in more than one         year         10,683         30,592           Noncurrent liabilities         3,271,833         3,219,758         3,219,758           Net oPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758         36,694,300 <b>DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 366,94300 367,788,498</b> 4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,3	Due from other governments	•	
Capital assets, net of depreciation         2,803,783 9,951,474         1,618,756 8,219,900           DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:            8,219,900           Deferred outflows related to pensions Deferred outflows related to OPEB         15,754,400 116,883         21,197,119 0            LIABILITIES:           362,190             Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190             Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134               Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769	Prepaid costs		
9,951,474         8,219,900           DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to PEB         15,754,400         21,197,119           Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0           15,871,283         21,197,119           LIABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758         29,770,712           Value pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712         22,116,226           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310         555,338         942,574           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574         16,263,836         5,879,884         0,937,310           Defer			
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:Deferred outflows related to pensions Deferred outflows related to OPEB15,754,400 116,88321,197,119 21,197,119LIABILITIES: Accounts payable and accrued expenses301,459 4,21,1283362,190 21,197,119Accued liabilities411,724 423,134 4,23,134 Accrued liabilities411,724 423,134 4,23,134 4,221,24Compensated absences, due in one year Voncurrent liabilities Compensated absences, due in more than one year591,421 	Capital assets, net of depreciation	2,803,783	1,618,756
Deferred outflows related to PEB         15,754,400 116,883         21,197,119 0           LIABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         20,797         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)         14,860,998)		9,951,474	8,219,900
Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0           ILABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued liabilities         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one         year           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712 <b>22,116,226 36,694,300 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 55</b> ,5338         942,574           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574 <b>16,263,836 5,879,884 16,263,836</b> NET POSITION:         (14,860,998)         (14,860,998)	DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:		
Deferred outflows related to OPEB         116,883         0           ILABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued liabilities         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one         year           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712 <b>22,116,226 36,694,300 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 55</b> ,5338         942,574           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574 <b>16,263,836 5,879,884 16,263,836</b> NET POSITION:         (14,860,998)         (14,860,998)	Deferred outflows related to pensions	15,754,400	21,197,119
Its,871,283         21,197,119           LIABILITIES:         Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758         29,770,712           Net OPEB liability         12,684,046         29,770,712         22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         15,708,498         4,937,310         942,574           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         14,860,998)			0
Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         366,94,300           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         14,860,998)           Net investment in capital assets         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			21,197,119
Accounts payable and accrued expenses         301,459         362,190           Accrued liabilities         411,724         423,134           Accrued Interest         27,499         0           Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         366,94,300           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         14,860,998)           Net investment in capital assets         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			
Accrued liabilities       411,724       423,134         Accrued Interest       27,499       0         Unearned revenue       23,437       38,212         Compensated absences, due in one year       591,421       489,769         Loans payable, due in one year       526,186       130,592         Noncurrent liabilities       Compensated absences, due in more than one       734,653         Loans payable, due in more than one year       3,391,489       1,225,280         Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net Pension liability       12,684,046       29,770,712 <b>DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:</b> 36,694,300         Deferred inflows related to pensions       15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to OPEB       555,338       942,574 <b>16,263,836 5,879,884</b> NET POSITION:       16,263,126       (14,860,998)         Net investment in capital assets       2,685,821       2,003,833         Unrestricted       (15,243,126)       (14,860,998)		301,459	362,190
Accrued Interest       27,499       0         Unearned revenue       23,437       38,212         Compensated absences, due in one year       591,421       489,769         Loans payable, due in one year       526,186       130,592         Noncurrent liabilities       Compensated absences, due in more than one year       3,391,489       1,225,280         Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net pension liability       12,684,046       29,770,712 <b>22,116,226 36,694,300 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:</b> 15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to pensions       15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to OPEB       555,338       942,574         16,263,836 <b>5,879,884</b> NET POSITION:       2,685,821       2,003,833         Net investment in capital assets       2,685,821       2,003,833         Unrestricted       (15,243,126)       (14,860,998)			
Unearned revenue         23,437         38,212           Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one year         887,132         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280         1225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758         12,684,046         29,770,712           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         16,263,836           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)		•	
Compensated absences, due in one year         591,421         489,769           Loans payable, due in one year         526,186         130,592           Noncurrent liabilities         Compensated absences, due in more than one year         887,132         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net oPEB liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         36,694,300           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			38,212
Loans payable, due in one year       526,186       130,592         Noncurrent liabilities       Compensated absences, due in more than one year       887,132       734,653         Loans payable, due in more than one year       3,391,489       1,225,280         Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net pension liability       12,684,046       29,770,712         22,116,226       36,694,300         DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:       36,694,300         Deferred inflows related to pensions       15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to OPEB       555,338       942,574         16,263,836       5,879,884         NET POSITION:       2,685,821       2,003,833         Unrestricted       (15,243,126)       (14,860,998)		•	
Noncurrent liabilities Compensated absences, due in more than one year         887,132         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         36,694,300           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			
year         887,132         734,653           Loans payable, due in more than one year         3,391,489         1,225,280           Net OPEB liability         3,271,833         3,219,758           Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712 <b>22,116,226 36,694,300 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:</b> 15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574 <b>16,263,836 5,879,884</b> NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         2,685,821         2,003,833			
Loans payable, due in more than one year       3,391,489       1,225,280         Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net pension liability       12,684,046       29,770,712         22,116,226       36,694,300         DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:       36,694,300         Deferred inflows related to pensions       15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to OPEB       555,338       942,574         16,263,836       5,879,884         NET POSITION:       2,685,821       2,003,833         Unrestricted       (15,243,126)       (14,860,998)	Compensated absences, due in more than one		
Net OPEB liability       3,271,833       3,219,758         Net pension liability       12,684,046       29,770,712         22,116,226       36,694,300         DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:       36,694,300         Deferred inflows related to pensions       15,708,498       4,937,310         Deferred inflows related to OPEB       555,338       942,574         16,263,836       5,879,884         NET POSITION:       2,685,821       2,003,833         Unrestricted       15,243,126)       (14,860,998)	•		
Net pension liability         12,684,046         29,770,712           22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         36,694,300           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)	Loans payable, due in more than one year	3,391,489	1,225,280
22,116,226         36,694,300           DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:         Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)	Net OPEB liability	3,271,833	3,219,758
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:           Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)	Net pension liability	12,684,046	29,770,712
Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310         942,574           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         5,879,884         942,574           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)		22,116,226	36,694,300
Deferred inflows related to pensions         15,708,498         4,937,310         942,574           Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884         5,879,884         942,574           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)	DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Deferred inflows related to OPEB         555,338         942,574           16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)		15,708,498	4.937.310
16,263,836         5,879,884           NET POSITION:         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)	•		
NET POSITION:           Net investment in capital assets         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			5,879,884
Net investment in capital assets         2,685,821         2,003,833           Unrestricted         (15,243,126)         (14,860,998)			
Unrestricted (15,243,126) (14,860,998)	NET POSITION:		
	Net investment in capital assets	, ,	2,003,833
\$(12,557,305) \$(12,857,165)	Unrestricted	(15,243,126)	(14,860,998)
		\$(12,557,305)	\$(12,857,165)

## Table 2Change in Net Position

	2022	2021
Revenues:		
Program Revenues	\$ 5,877,797	\$ 5,298,072
General Revenues		
Property Taxes	11,413,102	10,784,098
Investment Income	61,646	75,353
Total Revenues	17,352,545	16,157,523
Expenditures:		
Public safety	16,984,982	20,765,541
Interest and fiscal charges	67,703	93,425
Total Expenditures	17,052,685	20,858,966
Net Change in Net Position	299,860	(4,701,443)
Net Position, Beginning of Year	(12,857,165)	(8,155,722)
Net Position at end of Year	\$(12,557,305)	\$ (12,857,165)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position	\$ 299,860	\$ (4,701,443)

#### CHANGE IN NET POSITION (Table 2)

- Total revenues were \$17,352,545 or \$1,195,022 more than the prior year, due to an unusually active fire season which resulted in increased mutual aid reimbursement revenue as well as an increase in property tax revenues.
- Total expenses were \$17,052,685 or \$3,806,281 less than the prior year as a result of decreased pension costs associated with the Authority's actuarily determined proportionate share of SBCERA's pension liability being decreased this year.
- Net Position at end of year was \$(12,557,305), an increase of \$299,860.

#### **Debt Administration**

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had total debt outstanding of \$5,396,228. During the fiscal year, the District's debt obligation increased \$2,815,934 due to additional financed asset acquisitions entered into during the fiscal year.

#### Long Term Debt As of June 30, 2021

	<u>2022</u>	<u>2021</u>
Compensated Absences	\$1,478,553	\$1,224,422
Loans Payable	3,917,675	1,355,872
	<u>\$5,396,228</u>	<u>\$2,580,294</u>

#### Pension-Related Items and Net Pension Liability

#### Deferred Outflows and Inflows:

The pension and OPEB related items include deferred outflows and inflows in the amount of \$15,871,283 and \$16,263,836 respectively. The portion of deferred outflows related to contributions made by the Authority subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. The contributions made subsequent to the measurement date are \$3,420,743. The remaining deferred outflows and inflows resulting from changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share contributions, changes in actuarial assumptions, differences in projected and actual pension plan investments, and differences between expected and actual experience in total pension liability will be amortized and recognized as pension expense in the year ended June 30, 2023 and thereafter as shown in Notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.

#### Net Pension Liability:

The aggregate net pension liability represents total pension liability (the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees' years of service) less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The Authority's net pension liability as of June 30, 2022 is reported as \$12,684,046 for its proportionate shares of the SBCERA net pension liability and the Big Bear City Community Services District's net pension liability administered by CaIPERS.

#### Net OPEB Liability:

The aggregate net OPEB liability represents total OPEB liability (the present value of projected health benefit payments to be provided through the plan current retirees that is attributed to those employees' years of service) less the amount of the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position. The Authority's net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 is reported as \$3,271,833 for its proportionate share of the Big Bear City Community Services District's net OPEB liability.

#### **Capital Asset Activity**

As of June 30, 2022, the Authority had \$5,410,622 capital assets as shown in the table below. This amount represents a increase in capital assets in the amount of \$3,385,490 as a result of financed asset acquisitions.

#### Capital Assets (net of depreciation) Governmental Activities As of June 30, 2022

Land	\$248,916
Construction in progress	2,357,923
Buildings	152,048
Large Utility	2,483,677
Equipment	168,058
Total	<u>\$5,410,622</u>

#### Considerations, Plans and Projections for Next Fiscal Year

The revenue projections provided for in fiscal Year 2022-2023 are based on projected property tax pass-through revenues as well as ambulance, air operations and mutual aid revenues from which the projected expenditures for the Authority will be funded.

#### Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority's finances and to show the Authority's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Department, at the Big Bear Fire Authority, PO Box 2830, Big Bear Lake, California 92315, (909) 866-7566.

### STATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2022

	Governmental Activities
Assets:	<b>A A A A A A A A A A</b>
Cash and investments	\$ 1,694,512
Accounts receivable Accrued interest receivable	2,687,784
	49 137,092
Due from other governments Prepaid costs	21,415
Capital assets not being depreciated	2,606,839
Capital assets, net of depreciation	2,803,783
Total Assets	9,951,474
Deferred Outflows of Resources:	
Deferred pension-related items	15,754,400
Deferred other post-employment benefits-related items	116,883
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources	15,871,283
Liabilities:	
Accounts payable	301,459
Accrued liabilities	411,724
Accrued interest	27,499
Unearned revenue	23,437
Noncurrent liabilities:	
Due within one year:	
Compensated absences, due in one year	591,421
Loans payable, due in one year	529,024
Due in more than one year:	
Compensated absences	887,132
Loans payable	3,388,651
Net pension liability	12,684,046
Net other post-employment benefits liability	3,271,833
Total Liabilities	22,116,226
Deferred Inflows of Resources:	
Deferred pension-related items	15,708,498
Deferred other post-employment benefit-related items	555,338
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	16,263,836
Net Desition	
Net Position:	0.005.004
Net investment in capital assets	2,685,821
Unrestricted	(15,243,126)
Total Net Position	\$ (12,557,305)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

#### STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

	Governmental Activities
Expenses: Public safety Interest on long-term debt	\$ 16,984,982 67,703
Total Program Expenses	17,052,685
Program Revenues: Public safety:	
Charges for services Operating grants and contributions	4,052,349 1,825,448
Total Program Revenues	5,877,797_
Net Program (Expenses) Revenues	(11,174,888)
General Revenues: Property taxes Use of money and property Total General Revenues	11,413,102 61,646 <b>11,474,748</b>
Change in Net Position	299,860
Net Position at the Beginning of the Year	(12,857,165)
Net Position at the End of the Year	<u>\$ (12,557,305)</u>

#### BALANCE SHEET GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS JUNE 30, 2022

				Special enue Fund	Capi	ital Projects Fund		
		General	Gra	ints Fund	Сарі	ital Projects	Go	Total overnmental Funds
Assets:								
Cash and investments	\$	1,542,532	\$	23,437	\$	128,543	\$	1,694,512
Accounts receivable		2,687,784		-		-		2,687,784
Interest receivable		49		-		-		49
Due from other governments		137,092		-		-		137,092
Prepaid costs	1	21,415		-		-		21,415
Total Assets	\$	4,388,872	\$	23,437	\$	128,543	\$	4,540,852
Liabilities and Fund Balance: Liabilities:								
Accounts payable	\$	172,916	\$	-	\$	128,543	\$	301,459
Accrued liabilities		411,724		-		-		411,724
Unearned revenues		-		23,437		-		23,437
Total Liabilities		584,640		23,437		128,543		736,620
Fund Balance:								
Nonspendable - prepaid costs		21,415		-		-		21,415
Unassigned		3,782,817		-				3,782,817
Total Fund Balance		3,804,232		-		-		3,804,232
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance	\$	4,388,872	\$	23,437	\$	128,543	\$	4,540,852

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

#### **BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY**

#### RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds		\$ 3,804,232
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,		
therefore, are not reported in the funds.		
Capital assets	\$ 5,947,516	
Accumulated depreciation	 (536,894)	5,410,622
Long-term liabilities, as described below, are not due and payable in the current		
period, and therefore, are not reported in the funds.		
CSD Side Fund Ioan	(291,673)	
SBCERA loan	(901,201)	
PNC Fire Engine loan	(460,547)	
Banc of America Loan #1	(1,442,429)	
Banc of America Loan #2	(821,825)	
Compensated absences	 (1,478,553)	(5,396,228)
Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on long-term debt		
has ot been reported in the governmental funds.		(27,499)
Governmental funds report all pension contributions as expenditures; however,		
in the statement of net position, the excess of the total pension liability over the		
plan fiduciary net position is reported as a net pension liability.		(12,684,046)
Governmental funds report all other post-employment benefits (OPEB) contributions		
as expenditures; however, in the statement of net position, the excess of the total OPEB		
liability over the plan fiduciary net position is reported as a net OPEB liability.		(3,271,833)
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources that have not been included as		
financial uses in the governmental activity are as follows:		
Contributions made after the actuarial measurement date	3,420,743	
Changes in assumptions	2,343,957	
Difference between expected and actual experiences	1,082,811	
Adjustments due to differences in proportions	62,430	
Difference in proportionate share	 8,844,459	15,754,400
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources that have not been included as		
financial resources in the governmental fund activity are as follows:		
Difference between expected and actual experiences	(58,630)	
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments	(11,962,865)	
Adjustments due to differences in proportions	(312,603)	
Difference in proportionate share	 (3,374,400)	(15,708,498)
OPEB-related deferred outflows (inflows) of resources that have not been included as		
financial resources in the governmental fund activity are as follows:		
Changes in assumptions	(185,644)	
Difference between expected and actual experiences	(369,694)	
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments	 116,883	 (438,455)
et Position of Governmental Activities		\$ (12,557,305)

#### STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

		Special Revenue Fund	Capital Projects Fund	
	General	Grants Fund	Capital Projects	Total Governmental Funds
Revenues:				
Taxes	\$ 11,413,102	\$-	\$-	\$ 11,413,102
Intergovernmental	-	146,510	-	146,510
Charges for services	2,190,298	-	-	2,190,298
Use of money and property	61,646	-	-	61,646
Contributions	1,678,938	-	-	1,678,938
Miscellaneous	1,862,051	-		1,862,051
Total Revenues	17,206,035	146,510		17,352,545
Expenditures: Current:				
Public safety	17,760,303	156,771	-	17,917,074
Capital outlay Debt service:	2,835,905	-	720,572	3,556,477
Principal retirement	241,695	-	-	241,695
Interest and fiscal charges	40,204	-		40,204
Total Expenditures	20,878,107	156,771	720,572	21,755,450
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues				
over (under) Expenditures	(3,672,072)	(10,261)	(720,572)	(4,402,905)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):				
Transfers in	-	10,261	720,572	730.833
Transfers out	(730,833)	-	-	(730,833)
Proceeds from debt financing	2,835,905	-	-	2,835,905
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	2,105,072	10,261	720,572	2,835,905
Net Change in Fund Balances	(1,567,000)	-	-	(1,567,000)
Fund Balance at the Beginning of the Year	5,371,232			5,371,232
Fund Balance at the End of the Year	\$ 3,804,232	\$-	\$-	\$ 3,804,232

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

#### **BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY**

#### RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds		\$ (1,567,000)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period. Capital outlay Depreciation	\$	3,385,490
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The following amounts are the effects of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. Principal repayments on loans payable	274,102	
Proceeds from debt financing	(2,835,905)	(2,561,803)
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt for the current period reported on the statement of activities.		(27,499)
Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		(254,131)
Pension obligation expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		872,759
Other post-employment benefits expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		452,044
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities		\$ 299,860

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies

#### a. Reporting Entity

The Big Bear Fire Authority (the Authority) was formed on June 21, 2012, pursuant to the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act, commencing at California Government Code section 6500 *et seq.* to merge the Big Bear Lake Fire Protection District's (FPD) and the Big Bear City Community Services District (CSD)'s fire agencies under one umbrella, and provide fire protection and prevention services in the Big Bear Valley area of San Bernardino County.

The governing board consists of ten directors, including the elected or appointed members of the boards of directors of the participating agencies. The term of office of each director shall be concurrent with that director's term or office on the participating agency's Board of Directors.

The Authority's operations are funded by contributions from the participating agencies.

#### b. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all activities of the Authority.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

#### c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the government receives cash.

The Authority reports the following major funds:

- The General Fund is the Authority's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
- The Grants Fund accounts for receipts and disbursements relating to grant programs received by the Authority.
- The Capital Projects Fund accounts for receipts and disbursements related to the acquisition and construction of capital assets, including property, buildings, and equipment.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

#### Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied.

#### Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

#### d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

#### Cash and Investments

The Authority's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments for the Authority are reported at fair value. The State Treasurer's Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate State laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares.

#### Receivables and Payables

Available means due or past due and receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The Authority accrues revenue only for those revenues which are received within 90 days after year-end.

#### Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than purchased.

#### Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the governmental activities' column in the government-wide financial statements. The Authority defined capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than \$3,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost of constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of acquisition.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the Authority has reported its general infrastructure.

Addition of a major component (over \$3,000) to an existing fixed asset that increases its usability or value is considered to be a fixed asset addition to the original asset. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Authority are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets	Years
General plant and equipment	5 - 30

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

#### Compensated Absences

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate general leave benefits. Under the current memorandum of understanding, the Authority's suppression employees receive 17 to 22, 24-hour shifts of general leave each year depending upon length of service. Ambulance operators receive 13 to 17, 24-hour shifts per year; flight staff receive 10 to 14, 24-hour shifts of general leave, and administrative staff receive 21 to 31, 8 hour shifts per year. Each employee's maximum accrual of general leave shall be equal to three times the employee's annual entitlement in hours. Employees may cash out up to 192 hours of general leave per fiscal year. However, employees must keep a minimum leave amount of 72 hours.

All paid time off is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental fund only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

#### Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government reports deferred outflows of resources for pension contributions made after the actuarial measurement date, changes in actuarial assumptions, differences between actuarially-expected and actual experiences in the total pension liability, the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, adjustments due to differences in the proportionate share of pension contributions, and changes in the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. In the government-wide statement of net position, the government reports deferred inflows of resources for pension and other post-employment benefits related items due to changes in actuarial assumptions, the differences between expected and actual experiences, differences in proportions, and the difference in the proportionate share of contributions.

The governmental fund balance sheet also reports one item under deferred inflows of resources, which arises only under the modified accrual basis of accounting. The item, unavailable revenue from grant reimbursements is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period when the amounts become available.

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

#### Pensions

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement Association (SBCERA) and the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from SBCERA and CalPERS' plans fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SBCERA and CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, and investments are reported at fair value.

#### **Other Post-Employment Benefits**

For the purposes of measuring the net other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) trust, and additions to/deductions from CalPERS plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as it is reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, and investments are reported at fair value.

#### Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenses when incurred.

#### Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, government funds report the following fund balance classifications:

Non-spendable Fund Balance – This includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance – This includes amounts that are constrained on the use of resources by either (a) external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws of regulations of other governments or (b) by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance – This includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government's highest authority. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a minute action or a resolution of the Authority's Board of Directors.

Assigned Fund Balance – This includes amounts that are constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.

#### Note 1: Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance – This includes the residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the Authority considers restricted amounts to be used first, then unrestricted. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, they are considered to be spent in the order as follows: committed, assigned and then unassigned.

#### **Functional Classifications**

Expenditures of the governmental funds are classified by function. Functional classifications are defined as follows:

• Public Safety includes activities of the Authority involved in the protection of people and property from fire, and emergency medical services.

#### e. New GASB Pronouncement

For 2022, the Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017; Statement 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 enhances the relevance and consistency of information of the government's leasing activities. It establishes requirements for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The Authority's management has determined that there was no impact to the Authority's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 as a result in this change in accounting principles.

#### Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Note 2 to Required Supplementary Information, *Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations*, describes budgetary excesses in the General Fund that occurred for the year ended June 30, 2022.

#### Note 3: Cash and Investments

Cash and investments at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following:

	(	Carrying	Fair			
		Amount		Value		
Cash and cash equivalents Investments	\$	1,668,415 26,097	\$	1,668,415 26,097		
Total Cash and Investments	\$	1,694,512	\$	1,694,512		

The Authority follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds. Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated quarterly to the various funds based on monthly cash and investment balances. Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.

#### Note 3: Cash and Investments (Continued)

#### **Deposits**

At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the Authority's deposits was \$1,668,415 and the bank balance was \$2,489,660. The \$821,245 difference represents outstanding checks and other reconciling items.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure a City's deposits by pledging government securities with a value of 110% of a City's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure a City's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a City's total deposits. The City Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that are fully insured up to \$250,000 by the FDIC. The collateral for deposits in federal and state chartered banks is held in safekeeping by an authorized Agent of Depository recognized by the State of California Department of Banking. The collateral for deposits with savings and loan associations is generally held in safekeeping by the Federal Home Loan Bank in San Francisco, California as an Agent of Depository. These securities are physically held in an undivided pool for all California public agency depositors. Under Government Code Section 53655, the placement of securities by a bank or savings and loan association with an "Agent of Depository" has the effect of perfecting the security interest in the name of the local governmental agency. Accordingly, all collateral held by California Agents of Depository are considered to be held for, and in the name of, the local governmental agency.

#### Investments in State Investment Pool

The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the Authority's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based on the Authority's pro rate share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not rated. Deposits and withdrawals in LAIF are made on the basis of \$1 and not fair value.

#### Concentration of Credit Risk

The only investment held by the Authority is LAIF, which is exempt from any restrictions regarding concentration of credit risk.

#### Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2022, the Authority's investments in external investment pools are unrated.

#### Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2022, the Authority had no investments considered to be exposed to custodial credit risk. The Authority does not have a policy related to custodial credit risk.

#### Note 3: Cash and Investments (Continued)

#### Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2022, the fair value of the Authority's investments was \$26,097, all invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund which has a maturity of less than one year.

#### Fair Value Measurements

GASB Statement No. 72, *Fair Value Measurement and Application* establishes general principles for measuring fair value and standards of accounting and financial reporting for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. LAIF, being the only investment held, is considered to be uncategorized.

#### Note 4: Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital as	E	Beginning Balance	/eai		e 50, 2022, is a	15 10	Ending Balance	
	Ju	ily 1, 2021		ncreases	Decreases	June 30, 2022		
Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land Construction-in-progress	\$	248,916 157,460	\$	- 2,200,463	\$-	\$	248,916 2,357,923	
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated		406,376		2,200,463			2,606,839	
Capital assets, being depreciated: Equipment Buildings and Structures Automotive Equipment		280,969 211,749 1,491,945		17,512 - 1,338,502	-		298,481 211,749 2,830,447	
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated		1,984,663		1,356,014			3,340,677	
Less accumulated depreciation: Equipment Buildings and Structures Automotive Equipment		102,602 47,661 215,644		27,821 12,040 131,126	-		130,423 59,701 346,770	
Total Accumulated Depreciation		365,907		170,987			536,894	
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net		1,618,756		1,185,027			2,803,783	
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net	\$	2,025,132	\$	3,385,490	\$-	\$	5,410,622	

A summary of changes in capital assets for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Depreciation expense was fully charged to the public safety function in the amount of \$170,987.

#### Note 5: Long Term Debt

#### a. Asset-related loans payable

A summary of the changes in financed asset acquisition agreements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

	_	alance 30, 2021			Deletions		Balance June 30, 2022		Due Within One Year	
2016 Ambulance	\$	21,299	\$	- 571.651	\$	21,299 111.104	\$	- 460.547	\$	- 119.637
PNC Fire Engine Banc of America #1		-		1,442,429		-		1,442,429		147,632
Banc of America #2		-		821,825		-		821,825		113,083
	\$	21,299	\$	2,835,905	\$	132,403	\$	2,724,801	\$	380,352

#### 2016 Ambulance

In June 2016, the Authority entered into a financed asset acquisition for the acquisition of an ambulance valued at \$100,000. The ambulance as a five-year estimated useful life. For the year ended June 30, 2022, \$20,000 was included in depreciation expense. This agreement qualifies as a financed asset acquisition for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum payments as of the inception date. The agreement is to be liquidated through the General Fund. As of June 30, 2022, this agreement has been fully paid off.

#### PNC Fire Engine

In February 2021, the Authority entered into a financed asset acquisition for the acquisition of a Pumper Engine valued at \$671,651. The ambulance as a five-year estimated useful life. This agreement qualifies as a financed asset acquisition for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum payments as of the inception date. The agreement is to be liquidated through the General Fund. The balance of the loan at June 30, 2022 is \$460,547.

#### Banc of America Loan #1

In December 2021, the Authority entered into a financed asset acquisition for the acquisition of a ladder truck and brush engine valued at \$1,442,429. The ambulance as a five-year estimated useful life. This agreement qualifies as a financed asset acquisition for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum payments as of the inception date. The agreement is to be liquidated through the General Fund. The balance of the loan at June 30, 2022 is \$1,442,429.

#### Banc of America Loan #2

In February 2022, the Authority entered into a financed asset acquisition for the acquisition of a fire engine, ambulance and Battalion Chief vehicle valued at \$821,825. The ambulance as a five-year estimated useful life. This agreement qualifies as a financed asset acquisition for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of future minimum payments as of the inception date. The agreement is to be liquidated through the General Fund. The balance of the loan at June 30, 2022 is \$821,825.

#### Note 5: Long Term Debt (Continued)

The future minimum agreement obligations and the net present value of these agreement payments as of June 30, 2022, were as follows:

	Asset-related loans payable				
Year ending June 30	I	Principal	I	nterest	
2023	\$	372,911	\$	59,837	
2024		379,666		53,081	
2025		386,545		46,203	
2026		393,548		39,200	
2027		280,527		32,584	
2028 - 2032		911,604		83,202	
	\$	2,724,801	\$	314,107	

#### b. Pension related loans

A summary of the changes in loan obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

	-	alance at ly 1, 2021	Increases Decreases			_	Balance at ne 30, 2022	Due within One Year		
Loans from Direct Borrowings: SBCERA Loan CSD Side Fund Loan	\$	933,607	\$	-	\$	32,406 109,292	\$	901,201	\$	-
Total	\$	400,966 1,334,573	\$	-	\$	141,698	\$	291,674 1,192,875	\$	148,672 148,672

#### SBERA Loan

As part of the merger between the FPD and the Authority, the employees of the FPD are to be included in the San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement Association (SBCERA)'s County Safety cost group and moved out of the City's Other Safety cost group. SBCERA and the FPD, on behalf of the City, have agreed that the amount to effectuate the inclusion of the FPD into the present County Safety cost group, and to avoid negatively impacting the County as a result, is \$6,508,000 calculated as of June 30, 2016, the last date for which actuarially determined unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) figures are available ("Transfer Amount"). As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance is \$901,201.

#### CSD CalPERS Side Fund Loan

In Fiscal Year 2014-15, the CSD's Sewer Department loaned \$1,020,445 to the CSD Fire Department. The CSD Fire Department paid off their Safety Group CalPERS side fund with the loaned funds. The legally binding interfund agreement requires that the Fire Department repay the loan within 10 years including 3.75 percent interest. Previously the CSD Fire Department had paid CalPERS 7.5 percent for the same loan and the Sewer Department had been earning 0.3 percent with the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The side fund loan is secured with CSD collected property tax. As part of the merger agreement, between the CSD Fire Department and the Authority, this loan is now an obligation of the Authority. As of June 30, 2022, the outstanding balance is \$294,674.

#### **BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY**

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2022

#### Note 5: Long Term Debt (Continued)

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at June 30, 2022, are as follows:

	Loans from Direct Borrowings						
Year Ending June 30,		Principal		Interest			
2023	\$	148,672	\$	79,625			
2024		156,053		72,245			
2025		102,209		64,432			
2026		45,339		59,645			
2027		49,310		55,674			
2028-2032		319,418		205,502			
2033-2036		371,874		48,061			
	\$	1,192,875	\$	585,184			

#### Note 6: Compensated Absences Payable

Compensated absences represent the amount of accumulated vacation which is expected to be liquidated with future resources. There is no fixed payment schedule for unpaid compensated absences. See Note 1 for additional information. Compensated absences are typically liquidated through the General Fund.

Beginning Balance Additions		C	Deletions	Enc	ling Balance	Due Within One Year		
\$ 1,224,422	\$	1,071,074	\$	816,943	\$	1,478,553	\$	591,421

#### Note 7: Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of business, the Authority moves resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund where the resources are expended. Such transactions are recorded as transfers.

- The general fund made a transfer in the amount of \$10,261 to the grants fund to meet grant matching requirements.
- The general fund made a transfer in the amount of \$720,572 to the capital projects fund to finance the acquisition of additional equipment purchases.

#### Note 8: Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The Authority's two 457(b) deferred compensation plans are defined contribution pension plans administered by the Board of Directors and management of the Authority. The deferred compensation plans cover all employees who were previously covered under the Authority's previous 401(a) Money Purchase Plan, which closed at the end of the previous fiscal year and did not opt for a distribution of assets from that plan.

Employees may make voluntary contributions to the plan up to the maximum annual amounts permitted by the Internal Revenue Service. One of the 457(b) plans is administered by Nationwide Trust Company (Nationwide Plan) and the other is administered by Lincoln Financial Group (Lincoln Plan). Voluntary employee contributions to the plans were \$242,548 to the Nationwide Plan and \$98,598 to the Lincoln Plan.

#### Note 8: Defined Contribution Pension Plan (Continued)

Federal law requires that Plan assets be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants. Accordingly, the Authority is in compliance with the legislation. Therefore, these assets are not the legal property of the Authority and are not subject to claims of the Authority's general creditors. Market value of the plan assets held in trust at June 30, 2022, for the Nationwide Plan were \$232,525 for 22 participants; plan assets for the Lincoln Plan for the same period was \$98,598 for 14 participants.

The Authority's Board of Directors establishes and amends all deferred compensation plan provisions, including benefit terms and contribution requirements. Amendment or termination of the plans is subject to the meet and confer requirement of the Myers-Milias-Brown Act and other applicable law.

#### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plans

#### a. SBCERA Cost-Sharing Plan

#### Plan Description

SBCERA was established by the County of San Bernardino in 1945. SBCERA is governed by the County Employees' Retirement Law of 1937 (California Government Code Section 31450 et. seq), the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (CalPEPRA), and the regulations, procedures, and policies adopted by SBCERA's Board of Retirement. SBCERA is a cost-sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit public employee Retirement Association whose main function is to provide service retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits to the General and Safety members employed by the County of San Bernardino. SBCERA also provides retirement benefits to the employee members for 17 other employers which are members of SBCERA.

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California County Employees' Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL), the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). and the regulations. procedures and policies adopted bv SBCERA's Board of Retirement (Board). The Plan's authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by the CERL and PEPRA and may be amended by the California state legislature and in some cases require approval by the County of San Bernardino Board of Supervisors and/or the SBCERA Board. SBCERA is a tax gualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

SBCERA is a legally separate entity from the Authority, not a component unit, and there is no financial interdependency with the County of San Bernardino. For these reasons, the Authority's basic financial statements exclude the SBCERA pension plan as of June 30, 2022. SBCERA publishes its own comprehensive annual financial report that includes its financial statements and required supplementary information, that can be obtained by writing SBCERA at, 348 W. Hospitality Lane, Third Floor, San Bernardino, California 92415-0014 or visiting the website at: www.SBCERA.org.

#### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

#### Benefits Provided

SBCERA provides retirement, disability, death, and survivor benefits. The CERL and PEPRA establish benefit terms. Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average final compensation and service credit as follows:

	Safety - Tier 1	Safety - Tier 2		
Final Average Compensation	Highest 12 months	Highest 36 months		
Normal Retirement Age	Age 55	Age 50		
	Age 70 any years	Age 70 any years		
Early Retirement: Years of service required and/or age eligible for	10 years age 50	5 years age 50		
	20 years any age	N/A		
Benefit percent per year of service for normal retirement age	3% per year of final average compensation for every year of service credit	2.5% per year of final average three years compensation for every year of service credit		
Benefit adjustments	Reduce before age 50	Reduce before age 57		
Final Average Compensation Limitation	Internal Revenue Code section 401(a)(17)	Government Code 7522.10		

An automatic cost of living adjustment is provided to benefit recipients based on changes in the local region Consumer Price Index (CPI) up to a maximum of 2% per year. Any increase greater than 2% is banked and may be used in years where the CPI is less than 2%. There is a one-time 7% increase at retirement for members hired before August 19, 1975. The Plan also provides disability and death benefits to eligible members and their beneficiaries, respectively. For retired members, the death benefit is determined by the retirement benefit option chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to benefits based on the members years of service or if the death was caused by employment. General members are also eligible for survivor benefits which are payable upon a member's death.

#### **Contributions**

Participating employers and active members are required by statute to contribute a percentage of covered salary to the Plan. This requirement is pursuant to Government Code sections 31453.5 and 31454, for participating employers and Government Code sections 31621.6, 31639.25 and 7522.30 for active members.

The contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the SBCERA Board pursuant to Article 1 of the CERL, which is consistent with the Plan's actuarial funding policy. The contribution rates are adopted yearly, based on an annual actuarial valuation, conducted by an independent actuary, that requires actuarial assumptions with regard to mortality, expected future service (including age at entry into the Plan, if applicable and tier), and compensation increases of the members and beneficiaries. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits for employees that are allocated during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Participating employers may pay a portion of the active members' contributions through negotiations and bargaining agreements.

### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Employee contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, ranged between 9.15% and 14.84% for Tier 1 General members and 9.06% for Tier 2 General members and 11.81% and 17.30% for Tier 1 Safety member and 16.13% for Tier 2 Safety member.

Employer contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2022, are as follows:

	Employer Contribution Rates			
	Tier 1 Members Tier 2 Members			
General	43.07%	38.14%		
Safety	61.66%	53.34%		

The required employer contributions and the amount paid to SBCERA by the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2022, were \$2,803,745. The employer contributions were equal to the required employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022.

#### Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

At June 30, 2022, the Authority reported a net pension liability of \$9,801,142 for its proportionate share of the SBCERA's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021. The SBCERA's publicly available financial report provides details on the change in the net pension liability.

The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability were based on the contributions received by SBCERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021, relative to the total employer contributions received from all of SBCERA's participating employers. At the June 30, 2021, measurement date, the Authority's proportion was 0.744%, which is a 22.77% increase over the prior year proportion of 0.606%.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Authority recognized \$3,091,979 for its proportionate share of SBCERA's pension expense.

At June 30, 2022, the Authority reported their proportionate shares of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows		Def	erred Inflows
	of	of Resources		Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date	\$	2,803,745	\$	-
Changes in proportion and differences between employer's contributions and proportionate share of contributions		8,844,459		2,835,510
Changes in assumptions or other inputs		2,343,957		-
Net difference of projected versus actual earnings on Pension Plan investments Difference between expected and actual		-		10,246,983
experience in the Total Pension Liability		590,269		58,630
Total	\$	14,582,430	\$	13,141,123

### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The \$2,803,745 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions contributions made subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to SBCERA pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal			
Year Ended	Deferred Outflow	/s/	
June 30,	(Inflows) of Resources		
2023	\$ 1,427,	177	
2024	1,030,	544	
2025	(493,	144)	
2026	(3,585,	620)	
2027	258,	605	
Total	\$ (1,362,	438)	

### Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

The significant actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure the total pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date	June 30, 2021
Actuarial cost method	Entry age normal
Amortization method	Level percent of payroll
Investment rate of return	7.25%
Inflation	2.75%
Projected salary increases	4.55% to 12.75%
Administrative expenses	0.85% of payroll

Mortality rates used in the actuarial valuations are based on the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally with the two-dimensional MP-2016 projection scale.

The actuarial assumptions, used in the June 30, 2021, valuation, were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the three-year period of July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.25%. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation, and subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation but before deducting investment expenses are shown in the following table. This information was used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumption for the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation. This information will change every three years based on the actuarial experience study.

# Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

		Long-Term Expected
	Target	Arithmetic Real Estate
Asset Class	Allocation	of Return
Large Cap U.S. Equity	11.00%	5.42%
Small Cap U.S. Equity	2.00%	6.21%
Developed International Equity	9.00%	6.50%
Emerging Market Equity	6.00%	8.80%
U.S. Core Fixed Income	2.00%	1.13%
High Yield/Credit Strategies	13.00%	3.40%
International Core Fixed Income	1.00%	-0.04%
Emerging Market Debt	8.00%	3.44%
Real Estate	3.00%	4.57%
Value Assed Real Estate	3.00%	6.53%
International Credit	11.00%	5.89%
Absolute Return	7.00%	3.69%
Real Assets	5.00%	10.64%
Private Equity	16.00%	10.70%
Cash and Equivalents	2.00%	-0.03%
Total	100.00%	

### Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25% for measurement date June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed employer and member contributions will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates. For this purpose, only employee and employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits for current plan members and their beneficiaries are included.

Based on those assumptions, the Plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of returns on pension plan investments of 7.25% was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL as of June 30, 2021.

## Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Changes in Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability (NPL) of the Authority's plans as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the respective NPLs would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current rate.

	1.00%		Current	1.00%
	Decrease	Di	scount Rate	Increase
	6.25%		7.25%	8.25%
Authority's proportionate share of net pension liability	\$ 18,588,266	\$	9,801,142	\$ 2,612,166

### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

#### Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the SBCERA's fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued SBCERA comprehensive annual financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.SBCERA.org; by writing to SBCERA at 348 W. Hospitality Lane, Third Floor, San Bernardino, California 92415; or by calling (909) 885-7980 or (877) 722-3721.

## b. CalPERS Cost-Sharing Plan

The Authority funds a portion of the CSD's CalPERS pension plan for safety retirees. No current employees are eligible to participate in this plan and all active employees transitioned over to the SBCERA cost-sharing plan at June 30, 2020. The CalPERS plan is a cost-sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Local Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

### **Benefits Provided**

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment.

### Contribution Description

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified as plan member contributions.

### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

#### Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021, measurement period was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2021. The total pension liability was based on the following assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions	
Discount Rate	7.15%
Inflation	2.50%
Salary Increases	Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table <sup>1</sup>	Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase	Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power Protection
	Allowance floor on purchasing power applies

<sup>1</sup> The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.

### **Discount Rate**

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C (pension fund administered by CaIPERS) was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

### Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical and forecasted information for all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each pension fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculated the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

# Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

	Current Target	Real Return	Real Return
Asset Class	Allocation	Years 1 - 10 <sup>1</sup>	Years 11+ <sup>2</sup>
Global Equity	50.00%	4.80%	5.98%
Global Fixed Income	28.00%	1.00%	2.62%
Inflation Sensitive	0.00%	0.77%	1.81%
Private Equity	8.00%	6.30%	7.23%
Real Estate	13.00%	3.75%	4.93%
Liquidity	1.00%	0.00%	-0.92%

<sup>1</sup>An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.

<sup>2</sup>An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

## Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may differ from the plan assets reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to several reasons. First, for the accounting valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as deficiency reserves, fiduciary self-insurance and OPEB expense included as assets. These amounts are excluded for rate setting purposes in the funding actuarial valuation. In addition, differences may result from early Annual Comprehensive Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves.

## Changes in Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2022, the Authority reported its proportionate share of the CSD's net pension liability of \$2,882,904, a decrease of \$2,592,013 from the prior year amount of \$5,474,917.

The Authority's proportionate share of the net pension lability for the plan as of June 30, 2021, and 2022 was as follows:

	Safety Plan	
Proportion – June 30, 2020	0.047%	
Proportion – June 30, 2021	0.053%	
Change – Increase (Decrease)	13%	

### Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

### Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

	Discount Rate -	Current Discount	Discount Rate +
	1% (6.15%)	Rate (7.15%)	1% (8.15%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability			
-Authority Allocation	\$5,861,006	\$2,882,904	\$436,761
(42%)			

### Recognition of Gains and Losses

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Difference between projected and actual earnings	5 year straight-line amortization
All other amounts	Straight-line amortization over the expected remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of the beginning of the measurement period.

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and retired). The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021, is 3.8 years.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Authority recognized a pension income of \$543,996.

# Note 9: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

As of June 30, 2022, the Department reports other amounts for the Plan as deferred outflow and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions as follows:

	Deferred Outflows of		Deferred Inflows of	
	Resources		Resources	
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement				
date	\$	616,998	\$	-
Differences between Expected and Actual				
Experience		492,542		-
Changes of Assumptions		-		-
Net Difference between Projected and Actual				
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments		-		1,715,882
Change in employer's proportion		62,430		312,603
Differences between the employer's contribution				
and the employer's proportionate share of				
contributions		-		538,890
Total	\$	1,171,970	\$	2,567,375

The \$616,998 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. That and other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

	Deferred						
Fiscal period Ended	Outflows/(Inflows) of						
June 30:	Resources						
2023	\$	(708,537)					
2024		(419,142)					
2025		(412,538)					
2026		(472,188)					

# c. Summary of Pension Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Pension Expense – All Plans

	SBCERA	CalPERS	Total
Net Pension Liability	\$ 9,801,142	\$ 2,882,904	\$ 12,684,046
Deferred Outflows of Resources	14,582,430	1,171,970	15,754,400
Deferred Inflows of Resources	13,141,123	2,567,375	15,708,498
Pension Expense	3,091,979	(543,996)	2,547,983

### Note 10: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

#### Plan Description

The Authority funds health benefits for its share of all qualifying fire safety retirees from the CSD in accordance with Memorandums of Understanding under various labor agreements. The CSD's plan is an agent, multiple-employer plan administered by the CSD.

#### Contributions

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, an actuary will determine the CSD's annual required contribution (ARC) at least once every three fiscal years. The ARC is calculated in accordance with certain parameters and includes (1) the Normal Cost for one year, and (2) a component for amortization of the total Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The Authority provides funding to the CSD for the former CSD fire safety retirees enrolled in the plan. The Authority did not make any contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2022.

#### Significant Actuarial Assumptions Used for Total OPEB Liability

Actuarial Valuation Date	June 30, 2020
Contribution Policy	Authority contributes portion of full CSD ADC
Discount Rate	6.25 percent
General Inflation	2.50 percent
Mortality, Retirement	CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Disability, Termination	
Salary Increases	2.75 percent
Medical Trends	Non-Medicare - 6.75% in 2022, decreasing to 3.75% in 2076
	Medicare (Non-Kaiser) - 5.85% in 2022, decreasing to 3.75% in 2076
	Medicare (Kaiser) - 4.75% for 2022, decreasing to 3.75% in 2076

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Assumed Asset Allocation	Expected Real Rate of Return
Global Equity	49%	4.56%
Long US Treasuries	5%	0.29%
Mortgage-Backed Securities	5%	0.49%
Investment Grade Corporates	4%	1.56%
High Yield	4%	3.00%
Sovereigns	5%	2.76%
TIPS	5%	-0.08%
Commodities	3%	1.22%
REITs	20%	4.06%
Assumed Long-term Rate of Inflation		2.50%

6.25%

Expected Long-term Net Rate of Return, Rounded

# Note 10: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

### Changes in Net OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2022, the measurement date, the Authority reported its proportionate share of the CSD's net OPEB liability of \$3,271,833; an increase of \$52,075 from the prior year amount of \$3,219,758.

The net OPEB liability of the plan is measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability for the plan used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2021, rolled forward to June 30, 2022, using standard update procedures. The proportion of the net OPEB lability was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB lability for the plan as of June 30, 2021 and 2022 was as follows:

	OPEB Plan
Proportion – June 30, 2021	40%
Proportion – June 30, 2022	37%
Change – Increase (Decrease)	-8%

## Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using the discount rate of 6.25 percent, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.25 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.25 percent) than the current rate:

	Discount Rate - 1% (5.25%)	Current Discount Rate (6.25%)	Discount Rate + 1% (7.25%)
Plan's Net OPEB Liability -Authority Allocation (37%)	\$3,864,702	\$3,271,833	\$2,780,666

## Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan as of the Measurement Date, calculated using current healthcare trend rate, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current rate:

		Current	
	1% Decrease	Trend	1% Increase
Plan's Net OPEB Liability -Authority Allocation	\$2,662,135	\$3,271,833	\$4,021,601
(37%)			

## Note 10: Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued)

#### Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time.

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense.

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. The net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments are amortized over 5 years, while all other deferred outflows and inflows are amortized over the average expected remaining service life of plan participants. For the June 30, 2021, measurement date, the average expected remaining service life is 5.1 years.

### OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Authority recognized OPEB income of \$452,043. As of fiscal year-ended June 30, 2022, the Department reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

	Out	eferred flows of sources	Ir	Deferred nflows of esources
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	-	\$	369,694
Changes in assumptions		-		185,644
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments		116,883		-
Total	\$	116,883	\$	555,338

The amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows:

		Deferred			
Fiscal Year	Outflows/(Inflows)				
Ended June 30,	of Resources				
2023	\$	(158,371)			
2024		(159,394)			
2025		(166,197)			
2026		45,507			
2026		-			

### Note 11: Insurance

### a. Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement

The Authority is a member of the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA). CJPIA is composed of 124 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. CJPIA began covering claims of its members in 1978. Each member government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of Directors. The Board operates through a nine-member Executive Committee.

### b. Self-Insurance Programs of the CJPIA

Each member pays an annual contribution at the beginning of the coverage period. A retrospective adjustment is then conducted annually thereafter, for coverage years 2012-13 and prior. Coverage years 2013-14 and forward are not subject to routine annual retrospective adjustment. The total funding requirement for primary self-insurance programs is based on an actuarial analysis. Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on payroll and claims history, relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool.

### Primary Liability Program

Claims are pooled separately between police and general government exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to \$100,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from \$100,000 to \$500,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the first layer. (4) Incurred costs from \$500,000 to \$50 million, are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.

The overall coverage limit for each member, including all layers of coverage, is \$50 million per occurrence. Subsidence losses also have a \$50 million per occurrence limit. The coverage structure is composed of a combination of pooled self-insurance, reinsurance, and excess insurance. Additional information concerning the coverage structure is available on CJPIA's website: <u>https://cjpia.org/coverage/risk-sharing-pools/</u>.

### Primary Workers' Compensation Program

Claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and general government exposures. (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members. A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula. (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to \$75,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the first layer. (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from \$75,000 to \$200,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool's total incurred costs within the second layer. (4) Incurred costs from \$200,000 to statutory

### Note 11: Insurance (Continued)

limits are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.

For 2021-22, CJPIA's pooled retention is \$1 million per occurrence, with reinsurance to statutory limits under California Workers' Compensation Law. Employer's Liability losses are pooled among members to \$1 million. Coverage from \$1 million to \$5 million is purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer's Liability losses from \$5 million to \$10 million are pooled among members.

### c. Purchased Insurance

### Pollution Legal Liability Insurance

The Authority participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program which is available through CJPIA. The policy covers sudden and gradual pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the Authority. Coverage is on a claims-made basis. There is a \$250,000 deductible. CJPIA has an aggregate limit of \$20 million.

### **Property Insurance**

The Authority participates in the all-risk property protection program of CJPIA. This insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. The Authority's property is currently insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the Authority to the CJPIA. The Authority's property currently has all-risk property insurance protection in the amount of \$10,013,929. There is a \$10,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance which has a \$2,500 deductible.

### Crime Insurance

The Authority purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of \$1,000,000 with a \$2,500 deductible. The fidelity coverage is provided through CJPIA.

## d. Adequacy of Protection

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or judgments that exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There were also no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage in 2021-22.

## Note 12: Commitments and Contingencies

The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of legal counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Authority.

# REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GENERAL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Budget Amounts Original Final					Actual Amounts	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)		
Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1	\$	5,371,232	\$	5,371,232	\$	5,371,232	\$	-	
Resources (Inflows):									
Taxes		11,081,913		11,081,913		11,413,102		331,189	
Charges for services		3,453,555		3,453,555		2,190,298		(1,263,257)	
Use of money and property		135,814		135,814		61,646		(74,168)	
Contributions		1,927,600		1,927,600		1,678,938		(248,662)	
Miscellaneous		600,000		600,000		1,862,051		1,262,051	
Proceeds from debt financing		-		-		2,835,905		2,835,905	
Amounts Available for Appropriations	22,570,114			22,570,114		25,413,172		2,843,058	
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):									
Public safety:									
Salaries and benefits		14,340,198		14,340,198		15,347,326		(1,007,128)	
Supplies		286,065		286,065		315,563		(29,498)	
Professional services		411,976		411,976		419,811		(7,835)	
Maintenance and equipment		423,673		423,673		438,628		(14,955)	
Utilities		186,100		186,100		198,644		(12,544)	
Other expenditures		598,399		598,399		1,040,331		(441,932)	
Capital outlay Debt service:		-		-		2,835,905		(2,835,905)	
Principal retirement		348.346		348.346		241.695		106.651	
Interest and fiscal charges		104.825		104,825		40.204		64,621	
Transfers out		730,964		730,964		730,833		131	
Total Charges to Appropriations		17,430,546		17,430,546		21,608,940		(4,178,394)	
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30	\$	5,139,568	\$	5,139,568	\$	3,804,232	\$	(1,335,336)	

# **BIG BEAR FIRE AUTHORITY**

# BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GRANTS FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Budget Amounts Original Final				-	Actual mounts	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)		
Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
Resources (Inflows): Intergovernmental Transfers in Amounts Available for Appropriations		236,338 10,964 <b>247,302</b>		236,338 10,964 <b>247,302</b>		146,510 10,261 <b>156,771</b>		(89,828) (703) <b>(90,531)</b>	
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows): Public safety		248,302		248,302		156,771		91,531	
Total Charges to Appropriations		248,302		248,302		156,771		91,531	
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30	\$	(1,000)	\$	(1,000)	\$	-	\$	1,000	

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

# SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AS OF JUNE 30 FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS<sup>1</sup>

Measurement Date	2022 2021 6/30/2021 6/30/2020		-	2020 6/30/2019			2019 6/30/2018	
SBCERA Plan:								
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability		0.744%		0.606%		0.787%		0.393%
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability	\$	9,801,142	\$	24,295,795	\$	21,353,585	\$	9,948,458
Covered Payroll	\$	4,944,594	\$	6,049,654	\$	4,484,497	\$	2,343,852
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as Percentage of Covered Payroll		198.22%		401.61%		476.16%		424.45%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability		91.19%		71.96%		79.61%		79.89%
CalPERS Plan:								
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability <sup>2</sup>		0.053%		0.047%		0.051%		0.066%
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability	\$	2,882,904	\$	5,474,917	\$	5,291,112	\$	6,397,198
Covered Payroll		N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability		88.29%		75.10%		75.26%		72.82%
Notes to Schedule:								

# Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes: None

### Changes of Assumptions: None

<sup>1</sup> Fiscal year 2019 is the first year the Authority is reporting a defined benefit pension plan, therefore only four years are shown.

<sup>2</sup> This plan is closed to new entrants, and has no active participants. As such, there is no covered payroll.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

### SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS AS OF JUNE 30 FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS<sup>1</sup>

SBCERA Plan:		2022		2021		2020		2019
Actuarially Determined Contribution <sup>3</sup> Actual Contributions	\$	2,803,745 (2,803,745)	\$	2,490,371 (2,490,371)	\$	2,708,917 (2,708,917)	\$	2,618,764 (2,618,764)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-
Covered Payroll	\$	5,790,479	\$	4,944,594	\$	6,049,654	\$	4,484,497
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll		48.42%		50.37%		44.78%		58.40%
CalPERS Plan:		2022		2021		2020		2020
Actuarially Determined Contribution <sup>3</sup> Actual Contributions	\$	616,998 (616,998)	\$	575,708 (575,708)	\$	509,619 (509,619)	\$	506,410 (506,410)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-
Covered Payroll	N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>		N/A <sup>2</sup>	

#### Note to Schedule:

<sup>1</sup> Fiscal year 2019 is the first year the Authority is reporting a defined benefit pension plan, therefore only four years are shown.

<sup>2</sup> This plan is closed to new entrants, and has no active participants. As such, there is no covered payroll.

<sup>3</sup> For information on the actuarial assumptions underlying the actuarially determined contribution, refer to the SBCERA Funding Valuation dated June 30, 2021, and the CalPERS Funding Valuation dated June 30, 2019, available on the retirement plans' respective websites: www.sbcera.org and www.calpers.ca.gov.

The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

#### SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AS OF JUNE 30 FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS <sup>1</sup>

	 2022	 2021	 2020	 2019	
Proportion of the Net OPEB Liability <sup>2</sup>	 37%	40%	35%	 36%	
Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability	\$ 3,271,833	\$ 3,219,758	\$ 3,913,298	\$ 4,085,325	
Covered Payroll	N/A <sup>3</sup>	N/A <sup>3</sup>	N/A <sup>3</sup>	N/A <sup>3</sup>	
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability	30.8%	34.8%	22.5%	19.8%	

### Notes to Schedule:

### Benefit Changes: None

Changes of Assumptions: For 2021 - decreased medical trend rate for Kaiser Senior Advantage; mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale MP-2020; implied subsidy is valued for life with the exception of Medicare Advantage plans; discount rate, medical trend, and future salary increases decreased due to updating long-term expected rate of return on assets and general inflation rate.

<sup>1</sup> Fiscal year 2019 is the first year the Authority is reporting a defined benefit OPEB plan, therefore only four years are shown.

<sup>2</sup> This amount represents the Authority's share of the CSD's net OPEB liability. For more information on the CSD's proportionate share of the net pension liability in relation to CalPER's pool as a whole, refer to the CSD's financial statements available at www.bbccsd.org.

<sup>3</sup> This plan is closed to new entrants, and has no active participants. As such, there is no covered payroll.

# NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION JUNE 30, 2022

### Note 1: General Budget Policies

- 1. The annual budget adopted by the Authority Board of Directors provides for the general operation of the Authority. It includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
- 2. The Authority Board of Directors approves total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to appropriations throughout the year. This appropriated budget covers the Authority expenditures. Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the function level. Budget figures used in the financial statements are the final adjusted amounts, including any amendments to the budget during the year.
- 3. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device. Commitments for materials and services such as purchase orders and contracts are recorded during the year as encumbrances to assist in controlling expenditures. Appropriations which are encumbered at year-end lapse, and then are added to the following year's budgeted appropriations.
- 4. The budget is adopted on a basis substantially consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Accordingly, actual revenues and expenditures can be compared with related budgeted amounts without any significant reconciling items.

## Note 2: Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the following functions of the General Fund reflected expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts.

Major Fund	Appropriations	Expenditures	Amount of Excess			
General Fund						
Public Safety	\$ 16,246,411	\$ 17,760,303	\$ 1,513,892			
Capital Outlay	-	2,835,905	2,835,905			

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

# SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Budget Amounts					Actual	Variance with Final Budget Positive		
	Original		Final		Amounts		(Negative)		
Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	
Resources (Inflows):									
Transfers in		720,000		720,000		720,572		572	
Amounts Available for Appropriations		720,000		720,000		720,572		572	
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):									
Capital outlay		720,000		720,000		720,572		(572)	
Total Charges to Appropriations		720,000		720,000		720,572		(572)	
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	